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“The modern offshore system did not start 

its explosive growth on scandal-tainted islands in 

the Caribbean, or in the Alpine foothills of 

Zurich.  It all began in London, as Britain’s 

formal empire gave way to something more 

subtle… [the Eurodollar].

In fact, the formal empire did not quite 

disappear.

Fourteen small island states decided not 

to become independent, and they became 

Britain’s Overseas Territories, with Britain’s 

Queen as their head of state.”
Bodley Head, January 2011, forthcoming





MEMORANDUM

From: W.G. Hulland, Colonial Office
To: B.E. Bennett, Bank of England
Date: 3rd November 1961
Subject: Financial regulation in the Bahamas

We feel that this (lack of provision of an 
effective regulatory system) might be a grave 
omission, since it is notorious that this particular 
territory, in common with Bermuda, attracts all 
sorts of financial wizards, some of whose activities 
we can well believe should be controlled in the 
public interest.



“That in the opinion of this 
Council (British Virgin 
Islands Legislative Council) 
banking legislation which 
provides for guaranteed 
secrecy of accounts and 
exemption from income tax on 
all personal and corporate 
savings accounts for a period 
of not less than twenty years 
would give considerable 
impetus towards growth of 
banking system and to 
Territory becoming a centre 
for international finance;”



“…the USA…deplores the United 
Kingdom’s ‘encouragement’ of 
tax havens, and France, which 
has animadverted on the 
prevalence of ‘paradis
fiscaux’ as yet another 
undesirable feature of the 
Sterling Area.”
From: ‘British Dependent Territories 

and Tax Haven Business’
Joint Paper by FCO, IR and Treasury

Issued July 1971



1. Did the British Government have an overarching 

strategy for developing London as a tax haven?

2. Alternately, was the development of Britain’s tax 

haven empire largely a spontaneous private sector 

response to capital controls and high tax/ high spend 

governments?

3. Or did different Whitehall departments have 

conflicting views on the development of Britain’s tax 

haven empire in the 60s and early 70s?

What could the archives tell us?



“But why not go a step 
further and turn the 
City into a tax haven 
for foreigners by 
allowing investment 
managers to start 
exempted funds in 
London itself for people 
living abroad?”



Dear Sam
I do not suppose 

that the Treasury will 
be able to help us in 
this, but we feel we 
must leave no stone 
unturned.

We are 
increasingly concerned 
about the avoidance of 
tax through the use of 
“tax havens”.



“in some cases it might be 
appropriate to increase 
development aid in order to deter 
territories from setting themselves 
up as tax havens...[the level of aid] 
“could be used either as a stick or 
a carrot in negotiations with the 
territories concerned”



“We may be in danger of looking at this 
too much from the point of view of the British 
Government and not sufficiently from the point 
of view of the interests of the dependent 
territories themselves. I do not think that it 
would be wise to dismiss out of hand the 
possible indirect benefits which ‘brass plate’
companies may bring to the dependent 
territories in the form of commercial 
entrepreneurship that might not otherwise be 
attracted to the area. It can be argued that 
tax havens which are mainly aimed at North 
American companies may have little adverse 
effect on the United Kingdom and could even 
benefit sterling area reserves.”

Ministry of Overseas Development



“We need, therefore, to be quite sure 
that the possible proliferation of trust 
companies, banks etc, which in most 
cases would be no more than brass plates 
manipulating assets outside the islands, 
does not get out of hand.  There is, of 
course, no objection to their providing 
boltholes for non-residents . . .”



“Most, if not all, of the territories to which this 
document will be sent are receiving significant budgetary 
aid and in addition, no doubt, large amounts of 
development aid”

Some of the activities of “the smaller developing 
countries in the tax haven field are inimical to the 
interests of the UK Revenue, and where this is so we are 
bound to take action to protect ourselves”, especially 
from the Cayman Islands, which has introduced 
legislation which “blatantly seeks to frustrate our own 
law for dealing with our own taxpayers”.



“A brass plate company can have literally no 
more connection with the territory in which it is ‘resident’
than the brass plate indicating its place of registration and 
the services for a few minutes a year of a local bank 
manager, accountant or solicitor. All the financial 
transactions of the company can take place outside the 
island”. 



“experience elsewhere has shown that 
the ability to establish a tax free company 
generates activity and employment –
particularly in the development of tourism. All 
of this would look pretty attractive to some of 
the undeveloped islands around the world”



“Islanders say they are prepared to 
accept this; and indeed we see no 
alternative but a continuation of the 
present state of stagnation, impoverishment 
and dependence on British dole”.

The Jakeway Report



Mr Dun: “Mr Gent of the Bank of England 
[spoke] giving advice on how to avoid paying UK 
taxes”.

[Mr Gent] suggests that the Bank of England 
will not be prepared to pass on information required 
by the Inland Revenue...does the UK Treasury have no 
control over the Bank of England in matters such as 
these – surely Bank employees should not be working 
against government policy? and just what sort of 
arrangements and deals are made at these events 
‘behind the scenes’? – it really is just a bit too sordid 
to be true”.
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